State of Israel

DESIGN PROVISIONS IN THE PATENTS AND DESIGN ORDINANCE

An Ordinance to provide for the Grant of New Patents, the Registration of Patents and Designs Generally and the Requirements of International Conventions relating to Industrial Property.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. SHORT TITLE

PART 1 PRELIMINARY

- 2. INTERPRETATION
- 3. REGISTRY OF PATENTS AND DESIGNS

PART II PATENTS [Omitted]

PART III DESIGNS

- 30. APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION OF DESIGNS
- 31. REGISTRATION OF DESIGNS IN NEW CLASSES.
- 32. CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION.
- 33. COPYRIGHT ON REGISTRATION.
- 34. [Repealed by the Patents and Designs Ordinance (Amendment) Law, 5712-1952.]
- 35. INSPECTION OF REGISTERED DESIGNS.
- 36. CANCELLATION OF REGISTRATION OF DESIGN.
- 37. PIRACY OF REGISTERED DESIGN.
- 38. [Repealed by the Patents, Designs and Trade Marks (Adaptation) Ordinance, 5708 1948]

PART IV GENERAL

- 39. GOVERNMENT'S RIGHT TO USE PATENTS.
- 40. INSPECTION OF, AND EXTRACTS FROM REGISTERS.
- 41. PROHIBITION OF PUBLICATION OF SPECIFICATION, DRAWINGS, ETC.
- 42. POWER OF REGISTRAR TO CORRECT CLERICAL ERRORS.
- 43. ENTRY OF ASSIGNMENTS AND TRANSMISSION IN REGISTERS.
- 44. RECTIFICATION OF REGISTERS BY COURT.
- 45. EXERCISE OF DISCRETIONARY POWER BY REGISTRAR.
- 46. COSTS.
- 47. EVIDENCE BEFORE REGISTRAR.
- 48. CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRAR TO BE EVIDENCE.
- 49. DECLARATION BY MINOR, LUNATIC, ETC.

- 50. REGISTER OF PATENT AGENTS.
- 51. APPEALS.
- 52. APPLICATIONS IN PURSUANCE OF INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION.
- 52A. SPECIAL PROVISIONS AS TO VESSELS, AIRCRAFT AND LAND VEHICLES.
- 53. PATENTS AND DESIGNS REGISTERED UNDER PUBLIC NOTICE NO. 136 OF 1919.
- 54. OTTOMAN PATENTS.
- 55. OFFENCES.
- 56. RULES.

PART V SPECIAL EMERGENCY PROVISIONS

- 57. APPLICATION OF PART V.
- 58. RESTRICTIONS ON THE GRANT OF PATENTS AND THE REGISTRATION OF DESIGNS.
- 59. APPEAL.
- 60. APPEAL COMMITTEE.
- 61. RESTRICTIONS ON THE SUBMISSION OF APPLICATIONS ABROAD.
- 62. PERMISSION TO USE INVENTION.
- 63. COMPENSATION.
- 64. ROYALTIES.
- 65. COMPENSATION AND ROYALTIES COMMITTEE.
- 66. COMMITTEES PROCEDURE.
- 67. PENALTIES.
- 68. SUSPENSION OF EFFECT OF CERTAIN SECTIONS.

1. SHORT TITLE

This Ordinance may be cited as the Patents and Designs Ordinance.

PART 1 PRELIMINARY

2. INTERPRETATION

In this Ordinance, unless the context otherwise requires:

"article" means, as respects designs, any article of manufacture and any substance, artificial or natural, or partly artificial and partly natural;

"copyright" means the exclusive right to apply a design to any article in any class in which the design is registered;

"court" means the court having jurisdiction in the matter as prescribed y the provisions of this Ordinance or, where no court is prescribed, the Supreme Court sitting as a Court of Appeal;

"design" means only the features of shape, configuration, pattern or ornament applied to any article by any industrial process or means, whether manual, mechanical or chemical, separate or combined, which in the finished article appeal to, and are judged solely by, the eye, but does not include any mode or principle of construction or anything which is in substance a mere mechanical device;

"district court" means the district court or district courts appointed by Order of the Minister of Justice to exercise jurisdiction under this Ordinance;

"invention" means a new product or commercial commodity or the application in some new manner for any purpose of industry or manufacture of any means already discovered, known or used;

"inventor and applicant" includes, subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, the legal representative of a deceased inventor or applicant;

"legal representative" means the executor of a will or administrator appointed by the court or, if there is no executor or administrator, the person or persons who, under the law of succession applicable, are liable for the payment of the debts of the deceased; 2

"patent" means letters patent for an invention;

"patentee" means the person at the time being entered on the register as the grantee or proprietor of the patent;

"patent agent" means a person, firm or company carrying on for gain the business of applying for or obtaining patents in Israel or elsewhere;

"proprietor of a new or original design"

(One) where the author of the design for good consideration executes the work of some other person, means the person for whom the design is so executed;

(Two) where any person acquires the design or the right to apply the design to any article, either exclusively of any other person or otherwise, means, in the respect and the extent in and to which the design or right has been so acquired, the person by whom the design or right is so acquired;

(Three) in any other case, means the author of the design; and, where the property in, or the right to apply, the design has devolved from the original proprietor upon any other person, includes that other person.

3. REGISTRY OF PATENTS AND DESIGNS

- (1) There shall be a register of patents and a register of designs under this Ordinance which shall be kept at the Law Courts, Jerusalem, or at such other place as may be from time to time appointed by the Minister of Justice by order.
- (2) The register of patents shall contain the names and addresses of grantees of patents and of persons registered as patentees in pursuance of the provisions of ... section 54 and shall also contain notifications of assignment, licences, amendments and revocations of patents and other matters as may be prescribed.
- (3) The register of designs shall contain the names and addresses of proprietors of registered designs, notifications of assignment, licences, cancellation of registration of designs and such other matters as may be prescribed.
- (4) There shall be a registrar of patents and designs (in this Ordinance called "the registrar") appointed by the Minister of Justice, who shall be assisted by such officers and clerks as the registrar, with the sanction of the Minister of Justice, may from time to time determine.
- (5) The register of patents and the register of designs shall, in the absence of proof to the contrary, be evidence of any matters by this Ordinance directed or authorised to be entered therein.

PART II PATENTS [Omitted]

PART III DESIGNS

30. APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION OF DESIGNS

- (1) The registrar may, on the application made in the prescribed form and manner of any person claiming to be the proprietor of any new or original design not previously published in Israel register the design under this Part.
- (2) The same design may be registered in more than one class and, in case of doubt as to the class in which a design ought to be registered, the registrar may decide the question.
- (3) The registrar may, if he thinks fit, refuse to register any design presented to him for registration and shall refuse to register a design of which, in his opinion, the use will be contrary to law, morality or public policy.
- (4) An application which, owing to any default or neglect on the part of the applicant, has not been completed so as to enable registration to be effected within the prescribed time shall be deemed to be abandoned.
- (5) A design, when registered, shall be registered as of the date of the application for registration.

31. REGISTRATION OF DESIGNS IN NEW CLASSES.

Where a design has been registered in one or more class or classes of goods the application of the proprietor of the design to register it in some one or more other class or classes shall not be refused nor shall the registration thereof be invalidated

(One) on the ground of the design not being a new or original design by reason only that it has so previously registered; or

(Two) on the ground of the design having been previously published in Israel by reason only that it has been applied to goods of any class in which it was previously registered: Provided that such subsequent registration shall not extend the period of copyright in the design beyond that arising from the previous registration.

32. CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION.

- (1) The registrar shall grant a certificate of registration to the proprietor of the design when registered.
- (2) The registrar may, in case of loss of the original certificate or in any other case in which he deems it expedient, furnish one or more copies of the certificate.

33. COPYRIGHT ON REGISTRATION.

- (1) When a design is registered, the registered proprietor of the design shall, subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, have copyright in the design during five years from the date of registration.
- (2) If within the prescribed time before the expiration of the said five years application for extension of the period of copyright is made to the registrar in the prescribed manner, the registrar shall, on payment of the prescribed fee, extend the period of copyright for a second period of five years from the expiration of the original period of five years.
- (3) If within the prescribed time before the expiration of such second period of five years application for the extension of the period of copyright is made to the registrar in the prescribed manner, the registrar may, subject to any rules under this Ordinance and on payment of the prescribed fee, extend the period of copyright for a third period of five years from the expiration of the second period of five years.

34. [Repealed by the Patents and Designs Ordinance (Amendment) Law, 5712-1952.]

35. INSPECTION OF REGISTERED DESIGNS.

- (1) During the existence of copyright in a design or such shorter period, not being less than two years from the registration of the design as may be prescribed, the design shall not be open to inspection except by the proprietor or a person authorised in writing by him or a person authorised by the registrar or by the court:
- (2) After the expiration of the copyright in a design or such shorter period as aforesaid, the design shall be open to inspection, and copies thereof may be taken by any person on payment of the prescribed fee.
- (3) Different periods may be prescribed under this section for different classes of goods.

36. CANCELLATION OF REGISTRATION OF DESIGN.

Any person interested may at any time apply to the registrar for cancellation of the registration of a design on the ground that such design has been published in Israel prior to the date of registration.

37. PIRACY OF REGISTERED DESIGN.

(1) During the existence of copyright in any design it shall not be lawful for any person,

(One) for the purposes of sale, to apply to any article in any class of goods in which the design is registered the design of any fraudulent or obvious imitation thereof, except with the licence or written consent of the registered proprietor, or to do anything with a view to enable the design to be so applied; or

(Two) knowing that the design or any fraudulent or obvious imitation thereof has been applied to any article without the consent of the registered proprietor, to publish or to expose for sale that article.

(2) If any person acts in contravention of this section, he is liable for every contravention to pay to the registered proprietor of the design a sum not exceeding fifty pounds as liquidated damages or, if the proprietor elects to bring an action for the recovery of damages for such contravention and for an injunction against the repetition thereof, he is liable to pay such damages as may be awarded and to be restrained by injunction accordingly:

Provided that the total sum recoverable as liquidated damages in respect of any one design shall not exceed one hundred pounds.

38. [Repealed by the Patents, Designs and Trade Marks (Adaptation) Ordinance, 5708 1948]

PART IV GENERAL

39. GOVERNMENT'S RIGHT TO USE PATENTS.

A patent shall have the like effect against the Government of Israel as it has against any other person: Provided that any government department may make use of any patent on such terms as may be agreed upon between the department and the patentee with the approval of the Minister of Finance or, in default of agreement, as may be fixed by the President of the Supreme Court or a referee nominated by him.

40. INSPECTION OF, AND EXTRACTS FROM REGISTERS.

Every register kept under this Ordinance shall at all convenient times be open to the inspection of the public, subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, and certified copies, sealed with the seal of the registry of patents, of any entry in any such register shall be given to any person requiring them on payment of the prescribed fee.

41. PROHIBITION OF PUBLICATION OF SPECIFICATION, DRAWINGS, ETC.

- (1) Where an application for a patent has been abandoned or become void, the specifications and the drawings, if any, accompanying or left in connection with such application shall not, save as otherwise expressly provided by this Ordinance, at any time be open to public inspection or be published by the registrar.
- (2) Where an application for a design has been abandoned or refused, the application and any drawings, photographs, tracings, representations or specimens left in connection with the application shall not, at any time, be open to public inspection or be published by the registrar.

42. POWER OF REGISTRAR TO CORRECT CLERICAL ERRORS.

The registrar may, on request in writing accompanied by the prescribed fee,

(One) correct any clerical error in, or in connection with, an application for a patent or in any patent or any specification;

(Two) cancel the registration of a design either wholly or in respect of any particular goods in connection with which the design is registered;

(Three) correct any clerical error in the representation of a design or in the name or address of the proprietor of any patent or design, or in any other matter which is entered upon the register of patents or the register of designs.

43. ENTRY OF ASSIGNMENTS AND TRANSMISSION IN REGISTERS.

- (1) When a person becomes entitled by assignment, transmission, licence or other operation of law to a patent or the copyright in a registered design or to any interest therein, he shall make application to the registrar to register his title, and the registrar shall, on proof of title to his satisfaction, register him as the proprietor of such patent or design and shall cause an entry to be made on the register of the instrument affecting the title or creating such interest.
- (2) The person registered as the proprietor of a patent or design shall, subject to the provisions of the Ordinance and to any rights appearing on the register to be vested in any other person, have power absolutely to assign, grant licences as to, or otherwise deal with, the patent or design, and to give effectual receipts for any consideration for any such assignment, licence or dealing.
- (3) Except in applications made under section 44, a document or instrument in respect of which no entry has been made in the register in accordance with the provisions of subsections (1) and (2) shall not be admitted in evidence in any court in proof of the title to a patent or copyright in a design or to any interest therein, unless the court otherwise directs.

44. RECTIFICATION OF REGISTERS BY COURT.

- (1) The district court may, on the application of any person aggrieved by the non-insertion in, or omission from, the register of patents or designs of any entry or by any entry made in either such register without sufficient cause, or by any entry wrongly remaining in either such register, or by an error or defect in an entry in either such register, make such order for making, expunging, or varying such entry as it may think fit.
- (2) The court may, in any proceeding under this section, decide any question that it may be necessary or expedient to decide in connection with the rectification of a register.
- (3) The prescribed notice of any application under this section shall be given to the registrar who shall have the right to appear and be heard thereon and shall appear as if so directed by the court.
- (4) Any order of the court rectifying a register shall direct that notice of the rectification be served on the registrar in the prescribed manner who shall, upon the receipt of such notice, rectify the register accordingly.

45. EXERCISE OF DISCRETIONARY POWER BY REGISTRAR.

Where any discretionary power is by or under this Ordinance given to the registrar, he shall not exercise that power adversely to the applicant for a patent ... or for registration of an Ottoman patent under section 54, or for amendment of a specification or for registration of a design, without giving the applicant an opportunity of being heard.

46. COSTS.

The registrar shall, in any proceedings before him under this Ordinance, have power by order to award to any party such costs as he may consider reasonable and to direct how and by what parties they are to be paid.

47. EVIDENCE BEFORE REGISTRAR.

- (1) Subject to any rules under this Ordinance, in any proceeding under this Ordinance before the registrar, the evidence shall be given by a sworn declaration in absence of directions to the contrary but, in any case in which the registrar thinks it right to do so, he may take evidence viva voce in lieu of, or in addition to, written evidence or allow any deponent to be cross-examined on his declaration.
- (2) Where any part of the evidence is taken viva voce, the registrar shall have all the powers of a magistrate in respect of compelling the attendance of witnesses and all kindred matters.

48. CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRAR TO BE EVIDENCE.

A certificate purporting to be under the hand of the registrar as to any entry, matter or thing which he is authorised by this Ordinance to make or do, shall, unless the contrary be proved, be evidence of the entry having been made and of the contents thereof and of the matter or thing having been done or left undone.

49. DECLARATION BY MINOR, LUNATIC, ETC.

If any person is by reason of his not yet having attained his full age or by reason of lunacy or other disability, incapable of making any declaration or doing anything required or permitted by or under this Ordinance, the guardian, curator, or other person authorised by law on their behalf may make such declaration or a declaration as nearly corresponding thereto as circumstances permit and do such thing in the name of such person subject to the disability.

50. REGISTER OF PATENT AGENTS.

- (1) No person shall practise, describe himself or hold himself out, as a patent agent unless he is registered as a patent agent in the registrar of patent agents.
- (2) Any person who contravenes the provisions of this section is guilty of an offence and is liable to a fine of twenty pounds.
- (3) Nothing in this section shall be taken to prevent persons licensed to practise as advocates in Israel from filing any documents in the registry of patents and designs or from appearing on behalf of any person in any proceeding or on any application.
- (4) The register of patent agents shall be kept by the registrar, and the registrar shall be entitled to charge such fee as may be prescribed in respect of every registration.

51. APPEALS.

- (1) Actions for infringement of patents and of copyrights in designs shall be within the jurisdiction of the district court.
- (2) Appeals from decisions of the registrar as to any of the following matters shall be to the district court
- (One) refusal to accept a specification of a patent; (Two) \dots
- (Three) refusal to register an Ottoman patent (section 54);
- (Four) decision with respect to an opposition to the grant of a patent;
- (Five) dismissal of an application for restoration of a patent;
- (Six) orders as to amendment of specification or patents;
- (Seven) refusal to register a design;
- (Eight) order upon application for cancellation of a registration of a design;
- (3) Every such appeal shall be made by notice of appeal lodged at the office of the court within one month of the date of the decision of the registrar.

52. APPLICATIONS IN PURSUANCE OF INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION.

- (1) In this section, "the Convention" means the International Convention for the Protection of Industrial Property of 1883, as amended in 1911, 1925 and 1934.
- (2) A person who, in any of the countries parties to the Convention, has applied for a patent or for registration of a utility design or a design, and the successor of such person, may apply for a patent in respect of the same invention, or for registration of the same design, in Israel in accordance with the provisions of this section; and upon

his doing so, his application shall have priority over any other application subsequent to this application abroad as aforesaid.

- (3) An application under subsection (2) shall be made:
- (One) in the case of a patent -within twelve months from the first application for a patent, or for registration of a utility design, in respect of the same invention in one of the countries parties to the Convention;
- (Two) in the case of a design -within six months from the first application for registration of that design in one of the countries parties to the Convention.
- (4) An application for a patent under subsection (2) may be based on two or more application in one or several countries parties to the Convention, provided that they relate to the same invention.
- (5) For the purposes of the provisions of sections 11(1) (b) 11(1) (d) 22(2) (b) (iii) 26 30(1) and 36, the date of the application abroad, as specified in subsection (2), shall be deemed to be the date of the application, or of the patent or the registration of the design, as the case may be, in Israel; if the application is based on two or more applications abroad, the provisions of this subsection shall, in respect of each part of the invention, be taken to refer to the date of the application abroad relating to such part.
- (6) Where application for a patent under subsection (2) is made by a person other than the inventor, any person who proves to the satisfaction of the registrar that he is the inventor may, not later than one year after the grant of the patent, demand to be named in the letters patent and specification, but such naming shall not confer any rights, and shall not affect any rights granted by the patent.

52A. SPECIAL PROVISIONS AS TO VESSELS, AIRCRAFT AND LAND VEHICLES.

- (1) Subject to the provisions of this section the rights of patentee shall not be deemed to be infringed
- (One) by the use on board a foreign vessel of the patented invention in the body of the vessel or in the machinery tackle, apparatus or other accessories thereof, if the vessel comes into the territorial (jurisdiction) waters of Israel temporarily or accidentally only, and the invention is used exclusively for the actual needs of the vessel; (Two) by the use of the patented invention in the construction or working of a foreign aircraft or land vehicle or of the accessories thereof if the aircraft or vehicle comes into Israel temporarily or accidentally only.
- (2) This section shall apply only to vessels, aircraft and vehicles

of foreign countries

(One) which are parties to the Convention referred to in section 52 or

(Two) in respect of which the Minister of Justice, by order published in Reshumot, has declared that their laws grant similar rights to Israel vessels, aircraft and vehicles coming to them or to their territorial waters.

(3) For the purposes of this section, vessels and aircraft shall be deemed to be vessels and aircraft of the country in which they are registered, and land vehicles shall be deemed to be vehicles of the country within which the owners are ordinarily resident.

53. PATENTS AND DESIGNS REGISTERED UNDER PUBLIC NOTICE NO. 136 OF 1919.

Where patent or any design is, at the date of the commencement of this Ordinance, registered under Public Notice No. 136 of the 30th September, 1919, it shall, from the date of the commencement of this Ordinance, be deemed to have the same effect and validity as if it had been granted or registered under this Ordinance and shall be governed in all respect by the provisions of this Ordinance:

Provided that the period during which the grant of such patent or the registration of such design shall be valid shall not exceed the period for which the grant or registration was valid under the law of the country in which the patent was originally granted or the design was registered.

54. OTTOMAN PATENTS.

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Ordinance, the proprietor of any Ottoman patent granted under the Ottoman Law of Patents before the $1^{\rm st}$ January, 1918, may, within twelve months from the date of the commencement of this Ordinance, register such patent at the registry of patents upon complying with the provisions of Public Notice No. 136 of the $30^{\rm th}$ September, 1919, and any patent so registered shall be deemed to have the same effect as though it had been registered under the Public Notice before the date at which this Ordinance came into force.

55. OFFENCES.

(1) Whoever makes or causes to be made a false entry in any register kept under this Ordinance or a writing falsely purporting to be a copy of an entry in any such register, or produces in evidence any such writing, knowing the entry or writing to be false, is guilty of an

offence and is liable to imprisonment for one year or a fine of one hundred pounds.

- (2) Whoever falsely represents that any article sold by him is a patented article, or falsely describes any design applied to any article sold by him as registered, is guilty of an offence and is liable to a fine of ten pounds.
- (3) Whoever sells an article having stamped engraved or impressed thereon or otherwise applied thereto the word "patent", "patented", "registered" or any other word expressing or implying that the article is patented or that the design applied thereto is registered, shall be deemed, for the purposes of this section, to represent that the article is a patented article or that the design applied thereto is a registered design.
- (4) Whoever, after the copyright in a design has expired, puts or causes to be put on any article to which the design has been applied the word "registered" or any word or words implying that there is a subsisting copyright in the design, is guilty of an offence and is liable to a fine of twenty five pounds.
- (5) The proper court for the trial of any offence under this section shall be the district court either of the place where the offence or any act forming part thereof was committed or where the accused or any of the accused resides or carries on business.
- (6) Nothing in this section shall prevent any person aggrieved or injured by any act to which this section applies from taking proceedings for obtaining relief by way of injunction and/or damages in respect of such injury, whether such person shall or shall not have given any information or taken any steps leading or intended to lead to the prosecution by way of any form of criminal process of any person who may be criminally prosecuted under this section in respect of the act for which such proceedings are taken.

56. RULES.

- (1) The registrar, with the sanction of the Minister of Justice, may make such general rules and do such things as he thinks expedient, subject to the provisions of this Ordinance,
- (One) for regulating the practice of registration under the Ordinance; (Two) for classifying goods for the purposes of designs;
- (Three) for making or requiring duplicates of specifications, drawings and other documents;
- (Four) for securing and regulating the publishing and selling of copies at such prices and in such manner as he thinks fit, of specifications,

drawings and other documents; 12

(Five) for securing and regulating the making, printing, publishing and selling of indices to, and abridgements of, specifications and other documents in the registry of patents, and providing for the inspection of indices and abridgements and other documents;

(Six) for regulating the keeping of the register of patent agents under this Ordinance;

(Seven) prescribing the fees to be paid in respect of the grant of a patent and the registration of designs and applications therefor and in respect of other matters in relation to patents and designs under this Ordinance.

(2) Rules made under this section shall be published in Reshumot.

PART V SPECIAL EMERGENCY PROVISIONS

57. APPLICATION OF PART V.

This part shall only apply during a period in which a state of emergency exists in the State by virtue of a declaration under section 9(a) of the Law of Administration Ordinance, 5708-1948.

58. RESTRICTIONS ON THE GRANT OF PATENTS AND THE REGISTRATION OF DESIGNS.

Where an application for the grant of a patent or the registration of a design is submitted to the registrar, the Minister of Defence may, if he deems it necessary for the defence of the State, and after consultation with the Minister of Justice, direct the registrar to refrain from doing, or to postpone the doing of, any act in respect of the application, and he may also, after consultation as aforesaid, issue a direction prohibiting or restricting the publication of information concerning the subject matter of the application, or the transmission of such information to specific persons or a specific class of persons. A copy of a direction issued under this section shall be delivered to the applicant.

59. APPEAL.

- (1) Where the Minister of Defence issues a direction under section 58, the applicant may appeal against it to an appeal committee appointed under section 60.
- (2) The appeal shall be submitted through the registrar in three copies, one of which shall be forwarded by the registrar to the Minister of Defence.
- (3) The submission of an appeal shall not stay the execution of the direction.
- (4) The appeal committee may confirm the direction, with or without modifications, or cancel it.
- (5) An appeal may be submitted at any time, and further appeals may be submitted from time to time, even where a previous appeal has already been determined, but the committee may order the appellant to pay costs where in its opinion the further appeal was unjustified.

60. APPEAL COMMITTEE.

- (1) The Minister of Justice shall appoint an Appeal Committee for the purposes of this part.
- (2) The Appeal Committee shall consist of three persons. The chairmen

shall be a judge of the Supreme Court, and one of the members shall be appointed upon the recommendation of the Minster of Defence.

(3) Notice of the appointment of the Appeal Committee, and of its address, shall be published in Reshumot.

61. RESTRICTIONS ON THE SUBMISSION OF APPLICATIONS ABROAD.

No Israel national, and no other person owing allegiance to the State of Israel, shall apply in a foreign country for the grant of a patent or the registration of a design in respect of arms or munitions or any invention of military value, unless

(One) he has previously obtained permission so to do from the Minister of Defence; or

(Two) he has applied in Israel for the grant of a patent or the registration of a design in respect of the same matter and three months have elapsed since the day of that application without the Minister of Defence having issued a direction under section 58; or

(Three) he has applied in Israel for the grant of a patent or the registration of a design in respect of the same matter, and a direction has been issued by the Minister of Defence under section 58 but has been cancelled by the Appeal Committee.

62. PERMISSION TO USE INVENTION.

(1) The Government may permit any of its departments, or a person acting under a contract with the State, to use any invention in respect of which an application for the grant of a patent has been submitted, whether or not the patent has been granted, or to use any design the registration of which under this Ordinance has been applied for, whether or not it has been so registered, if satisfied that such use is necessary for one of the following purposes:

(One) the defence of the State;

(Two) the maintenance of essential supplies and services.

(2) The Government shall not grant permission under subsection (1) to a person acting under a contract with the State unless it is necessary in order to ensure or facilitate the execution of the contract.

63. COMPENSATION.

Where a direction under section 58 is issued, the Treasury shall pay the inventor or his successor in title such compensation as the Compensation and Royalties Committee mentioned in section 65 shall at its discretion determine.

64. ROYALTIES.

- (1) Where permission to use an invention or design is granted under section 62, the Treasury or the person to whom the permission is granted shall pay such royalties as are customary in respect of such an invention or design; payment shall be made to the inventor or, if a patent has been granted in respect of the invention, to the patentee or exclusive licensee, or both of them, as the case may be.
- (2) Where differences of opinion arise as to the amount of the customary royalties the question shall, at the request of the Attorney-General or of the person claiming the royalties, be decided by the Compensation and Royalties Committee mentioned in section 65.

65. COMPENSATION AND ROYALTIES COMMITTEE.

- (1) There shall be established a special committee (to be called the "Compensation and Royalties Committee") to decide on the payment of compensation under section 63 or royalties under section 64, and no court or tribunal shall entertain any claim with regard thereto.
- (2) Every claim shall be submitted to the Compensation and Royalties Committee through the registrar.
- (3) The decision of the Compensation and Royalties Committee shall be final.
- (4) The Compensation and Royalties Committee shall consist of (One) a judge of the Supreme Court, appointed by the Minister of Justice, as chairman;

(Two) the registrar;

(Three) a member appointed by the Minister of Justice from among the teaching staff of the Hebrew University, Jerusalem, the Hebrew Technical Institute, Haifa, or the Weizmann Institute of Science, Rechovot.

66. COMMITTEES PROCEDURE.

- (1) The Minister of Justice may make regulations prescribing the procedure of the Appeal Committee or the Compensation and Royalties Committee (both in this section referred to as "committee").
- (2) Each committee shall determine its own procedure in so far as it is not prescribed in this part or in regulations made under subsection (1).
- (3) Each committee shall be competent
- (One) to summon any person to appear before it in order to give evidence, on oath or otherwise, or to produce documents in his possession, but no person shall be required to give evidence or produce

documents which he could not be required to give or produce in a court of law;

(Two) to make an order compelling the attendance of a person summoned under paragraph (a) who fails to attend, to order him to pay the expenses caused by his nonattendance, and to fine him an amount not exceeding ten pounds.

(Three) to accept any evidence, written or oral, even if inadmissible in a court of law;

(Four) to order payment of attendance allowance to any person who has attended before it in answer to a summons under paragraph (a).

(Five) to admit the public to, or exclude it from the sessions of the committee.

67. PENALTIES.

- (1) Any person who publishes or transmits information in contravention of a direction issued under section 58, or who contravenes section 61, shall be liable to imprisonment for a term not exceeding two years or to a fine not exceeding five thousand pounds or to both such penalties.
- (2) A prosecution under subsection (1) shall not be instituted save by the Attorney General or his representative, or with the written consent of the Attorney General.

68. SUSPENSION OF EFFECT OF CERTAIN SECTIONS.

While this part is in force section 9 and the proviso to section 39 shall not apply.